COUNTY OF CURRY)	
CITY OF CLOVIS)	SS.

The Parks, Recreation & Beautification Committee met in regular session at 5:30 p.m., Monday, February 13th, 2023, in the North Annex, Clovis-Carver Library, 701 N. Main Street, in full conformity with the laws of the State of New Mexico and the ordinances and resolutions of said city with the following members present:

Commissioner Megan Palla, Chairperson, District 4 Commissioner Helen Casaus, Vice Chairperson, District 3

Commissioner George Jones, District 1 Commissioner Gene Porter, District 2

Sabra Smith, District 1
Jamaal Williams, District 2
Gilbert Salguero, District 3
Thomas Martin, District 4
Philip Frazee, County Resident

Bob Aucutt, Member organization utilizing parks

EX-OFFICIO PRESENT: Russell Hooper, Parks & Recreation Director

Justin Howalt, City Manager

EX-OFFICIO ABSENT: Lonnie Baca, Clovis Municipal Schools

ALSO PRESENT: Claire Burroughes, Assistant City Manager

Tauree Curry, Recreation Administrator

Representatives from various Clovis sports organizations

Commissioner Palla called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. and established the presence of a quorum.

Agenda Item No. 3 – Approval of minutes of January 23rd, 2023

Commissioner Casaus made a motion to approve the minutes of January 23rd, 2023 as presented; Commissioner Jones seconded the motion, which passed by acclamation.

Due to the number of area residents in attendance, the committee approved discussing Item 9 For the Good of the Oder before other agenda items.

Agenda Item No. 9 – For the Good of the Order

Discussion regarding facility fees

Background Summary:

Following the recommendations made by the committee at their January 23rd, 2023 Parks, Recreation & Beautification Committee meeting, the Clovis City Commission approved the following at their February 2nd, 2023 Commission meeting:

1. <u>Proposed User Fees for Recreation Activities</u>

In lieu of having individual fees for adults and youth per activity the Committee recommends a \$50 Annual Membership for anyone using our fields or facilities. This will be charged to the individuals, which will eliminate League User Fees. City staff is currently demoing software packages to track programs and memberships. The Membership will cover participation in all outdoor activities and all "open/free" times at our indoor facilities including the aquatics center, splash pad, and Potter Pool. Members will also receive reduced rates on indoor scheduled programming at both Roy Walker and the Aquatics Center. This would become effective April 1st.

Increased revenue of estimated \$125,000.00.

2. Parks and Recreation to Offer Exclusivity Rights for Leagues

Exclusivity for Fields will be granted at a rate of \$2000 per field per year. Not all fields will be offered exclusivity rights. Leagues that elect not to use exclusivity will have "First Right" on reservations. Exclusivity on Clubhouse, Concession Area, and Office Area will be at a rate of \$500 per area per year. These areas will be considered included if the league uses their exclusivity on the fields they are using. Clovis Municipal Schools shall have priority for scheduling and are being charged under a separate agreement. Exclusivity for the Boxing Gym will be at a rate of \$100 per month.

Estimated revenue of \$20,000.

3. City of Clovis Tournament and Concession Fees at City Owned Parks

Tournament Fees will be charged at a rate of \$20 per Youth Team and \$30 per Adult Team, per tournament. This does not include any internal playoffs, just tournaments that are held outside of normal league play.

Concession Fees will be for mobile vendors at a rate of \$100 per space with a \$50 deposit. The number of spaces will depend on trailer size. Mobile vendors would not be allowed at Guy Leeder, Bob Spencer, CYSA or other league during any league event without the request of the league.

Estimated revenue of \$30,000.

Commissioner Palla opened the floor to attendees wishing to speak regarding the matter.

Darrell Chancey, Clovis Softball Association talked about the \$50.00 user fee and said it would impact everyone. There would be close to \$58,000 going to the City of Clovis from the association alone. He understood the city had to look at everything to take care of things, he just thought it was a bad way to go about it. He thought there were other ways this could have been addressed.

Scott Samdall was concerned about the fee structure. He advised he came here in 2008 and retired from the Air Force in 2017. He talked about the adult softball. CSA is well run and over 900 people were registered last year. The economic impact to the community from the events they hold is huge (Roger Jackson provided the economic impact which was provided to the Parks

Committee and the Clovis City Commission). He advised they were subpar fields. Any work done was paid for by CSA. There is a 2' drop at the infield. He did not think people would come to town to be charged \$50.00. Last year Halloween Howl, had 143 teams. The tournament is held after the conference season.

Mr. Samdall spoke about the accomplishments of CSA. He felt that with the increase in fees the professional people will not come to Clovis. Ms. Samdall said the city, without a vote had raised taxes. He asked if out of town players were expected to pay the \$50.00 fee. He estimated that \$57,990.00 would be raised by this activity. He said this was not chump change for some of them.

Commissioner Palla advised an out of town guest coming to play would not have to pay.

Mr. Kelly Tindall said he was worried about the youth. There had been a lot of shootings in town and they need somewhere else for the kids to go. It was going to cost \$300.00 to play baseball. Mr. Tindall said they are not interested in swimming etc. they are playing baseball. Their organization paid \$750.00 for sand to redo their field. They mow their own field, pull weeds, and have volunteers. He asked will they pay employees to do this for Dickinson Field and Lockwood. The first base path is a rut at Lockwood. Dugouts are missing screws. Volunteers are going out to fix this. Families with multiple kids cannot afford the fee increases. They had a good sports program and feeder program years ago. Since Jim Hill has been gone it has been a mess. If they are going to do this, they need to put it under one roof, not five groups.

Todd Ulysess advised he is a board member Clovis Youth Soccer. They have children coming from Farwell to pay soccer. With a family of 4 kids it will cost \$450.00 with the increase. Teams come from Hereford to play in Clovis. They met with Russell Hooper (Parks Director) at their CYSA clubhouse where they will now have to pay \$500.00 for the use of it. He advised Mr. Hooper said he needs to buy a new mower and a new truck, not that fields are going to be improved. There are exposed chunks of concrete and stickers at the soccer fields. They have to use their own space heaters at the clubhouse room. There will be an impact to low-income families in this town who need the youth sports. Anyone who signs up for the leagues in the town would have to pay the fee. If he is going to the splash park he will pay the entry fee. He felt they should look at the big picture and what it is going to impact.

Robert Tyler, president CGAA in Clovis said they spend their lives giving kids something to do and now they are being penalized. He said they should not have to fight the city. He advised Mr. Hooper told him if they can't afford to play, they can't afford to play. Mr. Tyler said the adults have jobs. He said he had been president for 23 years and did all the fieldwork and volunteers 8-10 hours a day in the summer for the kids. He never thought he would fight the city.

Michelle Begland a parent said the fee would hurt the youth league. Her children have participated for 11 years. League fees continue to increase. They are all feeling the impact of inflation now. The community cries there is nothing for their children to do and with this fee there is one more thing they cannot do. Other parks are well cared for. The leagues and schools fix it. Brady Field is full of holes. It is a hazard to sit in the bleachers. JV baseball fields. All work is being done by the leagues. 100% of students receive free breakfast and lunch. She asked will there be discounts

and scholarships available if there are multiple children and will the money be used to benefit the children.

Jesus Ramirez advised he coaches and asked if the city will tear out one end field each year at the parks. He asked where is the money going to and why was the city taking such a drastic measure. He understood the economy is going up and they are all feeling it. He said people will go and play in Portales. Why should they travel so far when they have their own complex. He said Guy Leeder would be turning in his grave. The facilities should not be locked. He said they would speak about the same thing over and over. He asked how will the organizations keep up with the money when it is collected and will there be a format. He said single parents are not going to put their children in there.

Holly Rubio, a parent of a couple of children, said most of the people on the board play softball, baseball, and football. She takes her son to Texas to play football. They pass by a baseball and football field every day. They talk about the marching band - they don't have any music program in Clovis. She asked what the poverty level is in Clovis. She advised 100% of the schools in the town gets free food for the students.

Mike Zulich said if they were going to pay \$50.00 they would still have to pay to enter other facilities. Commissioner Palla said they would not have to pay to enter Roy Walker etc.

William Shaw said he had the same concerns as the others. He asked who would pay. He asked if they would be charging people who fish at Ned Houk. He advised they have been trying to build a bathroom at Brady and the city won't pay for it as the city does not own it.

Commissioner Palla advised the \$3.00 for entry to the pool, once you pay \$50.00 you would not have to pay after the \$50.00. If she wanted to swim laps at the pool, she could buy a \$50.00 voucher or if a friend wanted to play pickup basketball. They could go and fish for free. All the things that are volunteered and all the things that are going to be charged. If part of a league the \$50.00 fee will be required.

Richard Weaver advised he coaches kids and adults, softball, basketball and soccer. He said they are killing the kids. They will not be able to afford to play. The adults can afford it, but not all of them. They are already paying entry fees. The kids are playing on crappy fields. There are a lot of injuries and it is not uncommon for the ambulances to come and treat at the CSA fields. The lighting is horrendous which is another hazard. Families with more than 2-3 kids cannot afford it.

It costs \$1.00 to get into the splash pad. He asked for all the facilities they could go into for the \$50.00 and was advised these were Potter pool, splash pad, aquatic center, Roy Walker.

Mr. Weaver said Roger (Jackson) has had to hire local people to take care of the fields. Mr. Weaver said Robert is fixing the fields all the time.

Commissioner Porter said he wanted to hear what they have to say as does the rest of the committee. No one is looking to get at the community or their league. He understood and heard the passion and they were not oblivious to that. He did not want anyone to feel disrespected. They

did not want to hit the same topic 12 or 15 times. He wanted this kind of attendance at the meeting. He said they would figure out as a group what is best for the community and work together.

Andrew Duran asked if everyone attended the Draggin Main would they would have to pay \$50.00? Commissioner Porter said he would not like it.

Leslie Weaver with the school district at Gattis Middle School advised as they implement a fee for students, she sees those who cannot afford to pay now. Why aren't they doing more to get low income paid for. She knows single parents who would love for their kids to play. Why aren't they doing more for people to play. She said the deterioration of kids sports has led to elimination from the district. Some kids in their 20s and 30s used to have great organizations and taught them foundation. She was concerned they were pushing children away.

David Alguero advised he is a little league board member and volunteer. Right now, they are having issues with people volunteering with the leagues. They have to tell volunteers to pay \$50.00. They are teaching them. He asked what they were going to do for the kids. If they start taking coaches out it will make it worse. He drove to the parks and Brady field is the worst. The batting cage is unsafe and one of the poles are down. The volunteers fill the holes every year. Trying to get the city to get something done is like pulling teeth and so they are fixing the fields on their time and their money. If they do this how soon will the fields look better?

Mr. Howalt said the fee would not pertain to coaches.

Rhona Valdez said she has grown up children who played basketball and she is part of Western Little League and CGAA and the feeder program for the high school. She said low-income kids was the challenge. They put out a flier at the schools for those who cannot afford to pay and they will get a sponsor to donate in order to give them something to do. They get sponsors for socks, shoes, cleats and helmets. They collect money for multiple children. They are paying \$50.00 on top of the \$75.00 registration fee and then they have to buy equipment to play. They had to get sponsors to put up scoreboards. Now the city wants them to pay more and she was concerned about the \$2,000 cost. She did not think it was fair that they had to pay to use a concession stand for \$500.00. She said they were angry that the decision was put on the table without a vote. Now they have to do \$50.00 a year and they have to choose a sport that their child cannot play which gives the kids the opportunity to go out and do things they should not be doing.

With their league, if they are getting \$50.00 a person, and there are 12 to a team, and if they have 10 teams then it is \$30,000 a year. Where will the \$30,000 go? They are taking over their fields and their season? What will they do with the money?

Some of the fields do not have running water for the bathrooms and league members have to get this operating. It took years to get bathrooms and a scoreboard. Commissioner Palla said she understands and they have all volunteered.

Mr. Martin said everyone on the board is a volunteer or voting commissioner. The desk they sit behind does not separate them from each other. The process of the fees was brought to them at the last meeting. He advised the attendees this evening showing up to voice their concerns is how

it works. It is not you against us it is "us". He agreed it was a good point. It was not introduced to penalize the public but to make the situation better at park facilities.

Mr. Howalt advised the intent of the user fees is to improve parks and recreation. He heard a lot of how the fields and the condition of the facilities are sub-par. He thanked the employees and Parks and Recreation who are working hard to provide the facilities the city has. There are lots of volunteers that do work to try to improve them too, but that is not to discount what Parks employees are doing. The intent of the fees is for them to stay within Parks and Recreation to make needed improvements. Parks emailed every league in November letting them know the city was looking at fees and fee structure and asking for input. They received responses from the Clovis Swim Club and the CSA. It was great to have feedback tonight, but the city did not disregard the leagues input because they did reach out. Fees had been discussed at two Parks & Recreation meetings which was notified to the public. There are members of the committee that participate on the boards and within their associations who receive feedback.

All the revenues would go back into the facilities.

Dustin Cole said every time there is an improvement with Guy Leeder it had nothing to do with the City. CSA did the bathrooms and welding projects were CSA. The city mows. CSA could figure out a way to mow. The girls on his team, a lot of them come to them to say they cannot the league fee or the fee for the tournament. Some take time off from their lunchbreak to come and pay. The country is in the toilet right now and they are talking about getting rid of this. Watch them not bring in hundreds and thousands of dollars in economic growth. Watch what they do best and the government gone too far.

Mr. Howalt said Clovis Softball Association does not pay the current user fee, they make improvements to the fields instead. The \$3.00 per fee past practice has not been paid. This is why CSA gets credit for making the improvements.

Colby Isabells advised he is a coach and parent. The little league is a non-profit organization. With the \$2,000 payment for the upkeep they took a loss. They have an agreement where they take care of the field and has someone else who mows. He asked how they will grow as a league but financially be able to keep up with the \$2,000 per year and go to all-star competitions to hotels and food for parents to come along. It is not easy as it is and makes it harder. He has 3 kids and they don't care about swimming or the splash pad or Roy Walker or boxing. He said he would be paying \$350.00 for 2 ½ months of sports. He said it was a much larger sum of money than it seems to be, especially due to inflation.

Lorena Chavez advised she is a coach/parent and was concerned about the youth. The City of Clovis is building a senior center. She said they are paying \$2 or \$3 user fees currently but don't see improvements going into parks. If her name is not the right last name, she doesn't have access to the gym. She is having to fight with the volleyball and basketball league. The ones who go to Roy Walker cannot afford AAU. Do they want them to go to a facility with the roof falling in? She asked how they decided who was going to pay fees, and who was not. Was gymnastics paying. Commissioner Palla advised they are private organizations (gymnastics etc.).

Ms. Chavez said they take away time from their jobs to sacrifice for their kids and 2-3 hours from their pay to take their kids to the games to have something to look forward to. So many kids have depression and anxiety and social anxiety. She asked do they want their kids not interacting with other kids. Not every parent can afford to pay the extra money. Not everyone understands. She said she knew a lot of single moms – and advised she was not a single mom – but they pay for other kids to play sports. The kids are the future and the future of Clovis.

Commissioner Palla said she was going to move from public comment. Commissioner Palla said they are citizens and the board volunteers their time and supports sports group discussion and they have received input from leagues. She respected, appreciated and was humbled by the volunteer work everyone does, whether pulling weeds, taking children to practice, bring the snacks – it takes an army to bring the children up in the leagues. She did not want them to think they do not understand or appreciate that from the bottom of her hearts. She has spent hours in soccer, and is now involved in swim and drives kids all over the state. She heard comments about "substandard fields" "need more programming" "have leagues under one roof" "heating and cooling in clubhouses", "really crappy fields", that "lighting is horrendous", that "some have inadequate bathrooms and no water." She agreed with them. The Parks Board is trying to find a solution to fix that. They want the city to have amazing fields. They don't have it in the budget to make the capital improvements that they need to make.

Jamaal Williams said he represents Western Little League. Many of the things being expressed echo what he said. They need to raise user fees as they don't have it in the budget. He thought the \$2,000 league fee would not include the \$50.00 extra. He did not think it should be the \$50.00 fee and the \$2,000 league fee.

Mr. Howalt said the \$50.00 fee applies to all participants regardless of the exclusivity fee. The exclusivity fee allows the league to take ownership for the field to utilize as they see fit. For example, CSA controls the field 100% and the city of clovis has never programmed anything else there. The City of Clovis is allowed to use its own field for the easter egg hunt otherwise CSA has it. If you are going to lock facilities up you should buy it from a scheduling standpoint. If not then the City of Clovis could program other activities. We hear they need more programming and more fields so kids can go practice. If the fields are locked up because they have exclusive fields it turns over all the rights to the organization.

Commissioner Palla asked about the capital improvements. Mr. Howalt said you could make improvements to the fields to offset the exclusive use. If you want to build restrooms, etc. to make improvements that would count towards the exclusivity fee. Western has 3 fields and that would be \$2,000 per field. If not maintain the t-ball field they could program the field for kickball then you would not need the exclusivity on that field.

Commissioner Palla said they have people and groups that want field space and the city doesn't have availability. Once lady spoke about activities for children. That is her number 1 passion. The committee has tasked Mr. Hooper with this to start programming at Roy Walker and the aquatic center, basketball, dodge ball, yoga classes, workout classes. They are running out of

space and they need to allow people to use the facilities. If you don't want other groups to use the facility you are using then you need to pay for that.

Commissioner Porter said it was clear everyone had a concern for fee because of low income and that is a legitimate concern. He did not want to see any kid not be able to play because of fees. There could be discussion between city fees and league fees. He asked how they could make better the opportunities for the kids. Facility maintenance and field conditions was a concern. He said everyone wants pristine facilities that the locals could be proud of. He wanted to talk about how to fix the low-income issues and facility maintenance. Because of the weight of the discussion, they should consider postponing or delaying the April 1st start date.

Commissioner Palla said this was not on the agenda tonight. Mr. Howalt said they could put an agenda together to consider this and they could wait a month or schedule a committee meeting to hear the item. They cannot take action on something that is not on the agenda.

Commissioner Palla asked if there was anyone on the committee that had any discussion on the topic. Mr. Martin said the City of Clovis did their research and reached out to other communities to find out their fee structure. They want great facilities, but money makes them and that is what they are trying to figure out. \$50.00 would be great if you played every season and your kids loved going to the splash park. If you are a single season athlete \$50.00 is a lot. Should they do it by season and is there a better solution than 365.

Commissioner Jones said this was great information to have and some points to think about as to how to make things better. It would have been better to have it a couple of months ago. He thought they could call a special agenda and back to the commission with a recommendation sooner rather than later.

Commissioner Casaus said when they first started this process in November, they only got two responses. They need to bring it back to the committee. The poverty level is bad. They could revisit the \$50.00.

Mr. Aucutt said they could have a special meeting.

Commissioner Palla said they will have a special meeting at 5:30 p.m., 21 st February.

Mr. Howalt said the City of Clovis can email the leagues with the contact information they have. They don't know when contact information changes.

<u>Jhowalt@cityofclovis.org</u> is the single point of contact for the City of Clovis.

Mr. Todd Ulysess advised Clovis Youth Soccer is processed through NM Youth Soccer. How will it get back to Clovis from the state.

Agenda Item No. 4 – Discussion and recommendation regarding recreation programming software

Mr. Hooper advised he and Tauree Curry have got with different companies and received demos. They worked with Tyler and RecTrack. There were two companies, is RecTrack. Both programs will do 95% of what they want. Oakridge.com. They would take their city site and put a link to that. Registration – create an account – email name/numbers – age – male/female – are you

interested in softball/basketball/coaching/volunteering – waiver form to play in an organization. There will be a form about picture and social media. Medical information. You can group things together as families.

Youth programs – if you want to sign your youth up – afterschool program – register now. You would have to create an account or already have account created. You can only register in the programs you are allowed to register in.

Fee \$6,800 a year.

Mr. Hooper said there is a CivicRec program but it had a \$12,000 startup fee. With RecTrac you can change things later on.

Oakridge.recdesk.com is the site.

Commissioner Palla asked if there was a city they could go to look at. Ocean City New Jersey.

Mr. Hooper said it helps with tracking, waivers, legality, etc.

Mr. Aucutt asked if they would track spectators. Mr. Hooper said they would not.

Mr. Martin asked if they were deciding this tonight? Mr. Howalt said they could table if they wanted to.

Mr. Aucutt asked who would control it? Mr. Hooper said Parks & Recreation would.

Mr. Curry said everything would be done with the software. Currently he is doing things on spreadsheets. Once you have done it one time you can just update your information through the system. It will you better direction for the future. It is a good way to reach out to people for next time there is an activity.

There are ways to reach out to the schools for people who do not have access for programs like this. Have they tried other ways to get money from the state? She asked would this come from the \$50.00 fee.

A lady asked about grant funding and what the city has applied for. Mr. Howalt said they are replacing equipment at Greene Acres and the skateboard park, and playground at Rierson, new shade structures at Beachum, roof at Roy Walker. Lighting at Roy Walker interior and exterior. Are there are other resources other than \$50.00 for children.

Commissioner Palla asked for a recommendation regarding the software. Commissioner Casaus thought they should table this; Mr. Salguero seconded the motion which carried by acclamation. Tabled to the February 21st meeting.

Agenda Item No. 5 – Discussion and recommendation regarding daily use fees at Roy Walker

Mr. Hooper advised they were trying to create more programming and employees. They have 3 full time and several part time recreational employees. They are the only place that has free use for the gym and recreation center. He would like to develop a daily use fee of \$1.00 to use the

gym whether that be the weight room or other facility. It could go towards the \$50.00 fee and could be tracked with the software.

Mr. Aucutt asked would the Clovis volleyball be included in this? Mr. Hooper said it would be part of the user fee. Spectators would not be charged.

Commissioner Palla said there was concern about not knowing who is in the gym and they don't know who to contact. They need to get them some software so they know who is there, and they can get a waiver. Roy Walker is the only free facility in the area.

Commissioner Casaus asked about how many employees were there. Mr. Hooper said they rotate. Commissioner Casaus thought there needed to be two employees there at all times. She felt a dollar was sufficient.

Mr. Dennis Chavez asked if the taxes paid for Roy Walker. Mr. Howalt said when they talk to other indoor facilities, there is a charge to use the facility. The tax dollars pay for the facility. Mr. Chavez said stop using free. Mr. Howalt said there was not an entrance charge.

Mr. Williams asked if this would be for going to the boxing gym or pickleball. Was it a league fee. Mr. Howalt said there are no league fees. Pickleball is not a league so they would pay \$1.00 to play pickleball.

Mr. Aucutt asked Mr. Curry if there was a problem with charging \$1.00 a head. Mr. Curry thought any change gets a backlash. If you have to start paying it would be an issue. Commissioner Jones said they needed to make a decision holistically. He moved to table; Commissioner Casaus seconded the motion which carried by acclamation.

Commissioner Palla asked people to email jhowalt@cityofclovis.org with comments.

Agenda Item No. 6 – Discussion and recommendation regarding use agreements

Not discussed.

<u>Agenda Item No. 7 – Discussion and recommendation regarding RV use at the shooting range during sanctioned events</u>

Mr. Hooper advised regarding the matter. Groups would like to use overnight dry camping at the facility during the sanctioned events in their campers. He asked how they could proceed with this. There would be no electrical or water. They could camp within the facility and there would need to be waivers to stay away from the facility. Alternatively, they could park them outside the area. Mr. Howalt said they currently do not allow camping in parks. This is specific to the shooting range. Mr. Hooper said there would be anything up to 20 or possibly more. Mr. Martin asked if it would be designated camping. Mr. Hooper said they would have to register. Commissioner Jones thought it was a great idea and would open them up for more competitions. Mr. Hooper said he would find out costs for other facilities.

Commissioner Porter said he liked the idea but some things needed to be thought about. Would there be a cost to develop the RVs. There would be an increase in trash and debris. Would they

have an employee overnight. How would it effect their liability insurance. Are they drinking out there, and how do they monitor it. He liked the potential revenue stream.

Mr. Howalt said that was something they would work out with the city attorney.

Commissioner Jones moved to look at this and come back with recommendations; Ms. Smith seconded the motion which carried by acclamation.

Agenda Item No. 8 – Updates

Parks Update

They are putting in the new skateboard park today at Greene Acres. They have done a lot of tree trimming. There is a water safety instructor class for Sandy Pieratt. They have cleaned up the hay barn. They removed the old swing set at Rierson. They are working with Finance on the NOOs.

Will they remove graffiti at Greene Acres? Mr. Hooper said it is on the list of things to do.

Recreation Update

Tauree Curry said they are doing self-defense program, youth basketball recreation, yoga. He heard comments about offering more. The fees will give them a chance to offer more programs. They want to add to the existing programs. They had conversations with Hobbs, Carlsbad and Roswell and around the state, and this is how they are set up in other places. It is not something they just came up with. They want to offer more to the community.

Zoo Update

The demolition work for the education center started today. They are seeking a curator to help with veterinary work. 40-60 military volunteers are coming to help clean up the commissary. Last Saturday/Sunday 337 came to the valentine event at the zoo.

They will be picking up kangaroos next Friday.

Agenda Item 10 – Adjournment

\$30.00 team – would the city help pick up trash. Recommendation from Roger Jackson. City provided with the economic impact for 2022 Clovis Softball Association.

There being no further discussion, the meeting adjourned at 7:36 p.m.